

# Woodlands Primary School and Nursery Relationships, Sex and Health Education Policy

Review March 2025



# Legal equirements

#### Curriculum requirements

As from September 2020, under The Relationships Education, Relationships and Sex Education and Health Education (England) Regulations 2019:

Relationships education is compulsory for all pupils receiving primary education.

Health education is compulsory in all schools except independent schools. Personal, Social, Health and Economic Education (PSHE) continues to be compulsory in independent schools.

#### Policy requirements

As from September 2020, under the Department for Education, Statutory Guidance for Relationships Education and Sex Edu- cation (RSE) and Health Education 2019, every primary school in England must have in place a written policy for relationships education that meets the needs of pupils, parents and carers and reflects the community that the school serves.

In preparing the policy, schools must consult with parents and carers on the school's proposed outline of its relationships education curriculum.

The draft relationships education policy must be approved by the school's governing body (or other appropriate body such as a trustee board).

The relationships education policy must be made available on a school's website and copies given free of charge on request to

the school office.

The relationships education policy must be reviewed, the recommended review period being every three years.

The relationships education policy must:

- Define relationships education.
- Set out the relationships education subject content, how it is taught and who is responsible for teaching it.
- Describe how the relationships education subject is monitored and evaluated.
- Include information to clarify why parents/carers do not have a right to withdraw their child from what is compulsory in relationships education.
- Confirm the date by which the relationships education policy will be reviewed.
- Define any sex education the school chooses to teach other than that covered in the science curriculum.
- Include information about a parent's/carer's right to request that their child be excused from any sex education the school chooses to teach, other than that covered in the science curriculum.

# Contents

Introduction	4
Legal context	4
Definition*	5
Aims	5
Roles and responsibilities	6
Trustees/governors	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Headteacher/principal	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Subject leader	6
All staff	6
Curriculum organisation*	7
Teaching and learning	7
Curriculum content	7
Long term planning	7
Resources	7
Visitors	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Equality	8
Right to withdraw from sex education*	8
Safeguarding	9
Support	10
Monitoring and evaluating*	10
Professional development	10
Communication of policy	10
Review*	Error! Bookmark not delined.

#### Introduction

This is the policy of Woodlands Primary School and Nursery regarding Relationships, Sex and Health Education (RSHE), approved by The School's Governing Body following a consultation with parents and carers March 2023.

## Legal context

The law was changed with effect from September 2020 so that primary schools in England must teach relationships education and health education (*The Children and Social Work Act 2017*).

- The relationships education part of the new curriculum teaches what children need to learn to build positive and safe relationships with family and friends and online.
- The health education part of the new curriculum covers both physical health and mental wellbeing and teaches children how to make good decisions about their own health and wellbeing; how to recognise issues in themselves and in others; and how to seek support as early as possible when issues arise.

Sex education is not compulsory in primary schools, but:

- The new curriculum for relationships education and health education does include content on puberty.
- The national curriculum for science includes subject content in related areas, such as the main external body parts; the human body as it grows from birth to old age (including puberty); and reproduction in some plants and animals.

Following this change in the law, the Department for Education published *Statutory Guidance for Relationships Education*, *Relationships and Sex Education (RSE)* and *Health Education (2019)*. This guidance requires primary schools in England to have a written relationships education policy to cover the following:

- How relationships education is delivered
- What sex education (if any) a school chooses to cover that goes beyond the national curriculum for science and relationships education.

There is no equivalent requirement for a health education policy but, in line with best practice, this RSHE policy also covers health education.

This RSHE policy also supports legal requirements relating to the following:

- The Equality Act 2010.
- The Education Act 1996.
- Statutory guidance, Keeping Children Safe in Education 2020.

The following policies are also relevant to this Relationships and Health Education policy:

- Anti-Bullying Policy
- Child Protection and Safeguarding Policy
- Drug and Substance Abuse Policy
- Spiritual, Moral, Social and Cultural Development

## Definition\*

RSHE supports children and young people's personal development including their spiritual, moral, social and cultural development. Its aims are to help children and young people to deal with the real-life issues they face as they grow up and that they will encounter as adults. Their learning will support them both online and offline, to make informed choices about their safety, physical and mental health, enabling them to live positive and fulfilled lives.

RSHE is enhanced by our supportive school ethos where everyone is valued, positive relationships are promoted and there is a safe learning environment. It is our belief that RSHE is the responsibility of all staff and is integral to teaching a broad and balanced curriculum, educating the whole child and adhering to the 'Keeping Children Safe in Education' statutory guidance.

#### **Aims**

RSHE in our school forms part of the personal, social and health education curriculum. This is integrated within the wider school curriculum and complements and overlaps with the general ethos and life of the school. Woodlands Primary School and Nursery provide a planned, age-appropriate scheme of work, designed to capitalise on the fascination and interest that children have about themselves, their own growth and development and to offer reassurance that such changes are normal and natural.

In planning and presenting our RSHE programme we provide the opportunity for pupils to express themselves within a trusted and safe environment, following agreed ground rules. We want to reassure children of their value and self-worth including aspects of dignity, self-respect and self-restraint, help them to have a responsible attitude towards personal relationships including mutual respect and care, and to develop sensitivity towards the needs of others, providing knowledge of loving relationships and the human reproductive process. We aim to inform children on matters of personal hygiene and related health issues, encourage exploration of values and moral issues taking into account physical and moral risks associated with certain behaviour, educate against discrimination and prejudice and help prepare children to make informed choices about relationships.

We offer a planned and appropriate scheme of work, devised to meet the following aims and objectives:

- Raise and promote positive self esteem
- Help pupils develop their skills and confidence in making decisions, communication, assertiveness, self-expression, respect for themselves and others
- Help pupils communicate and understand their feelings and emotions
- Provide pupils with skills necessary to keep themselves happy and safe
- Prepare pupils for the physical and emotional changes of growing up
- Offer opportunity for pupils to develop and clarify their attitudes and values
- Counteract myths and misinformation
- Challenge media stereotypes, oppression and prejudice and promote equal opportunities
- Explain the meaning of words in a sensible and factual way, using correct names for body parts and functions
- Provide reassurance that change is part of the life cycle and help pupils accept variations

- Develop the confidence to seek help, support and advice.
- To work with parents to provide a well balanced viewpoint on all aspects of RSHE for children so that their social, emotional and physical health is safeguarded.
- To understand the value of family life, the implications of parenthood and the need for the proper care of all young things.
- To build and develop the self-esteem of all pupils.
- To promote equal opportunities for all.
- To help pupils to accept the variation in rates of growth and development and to provide reassurance that change is part of life's cycle; to give support in adjusting to these changes.
- To counteract misleading folklore, myth and playground rumours and false assumptions.
- Foster a culture of acceptance and openness where questions and discussion can take place without embarrassment.
- Develop skills in personal relationships, e.g. communication, assertiveness, decision-making, and build and develop self-esteem by helping children to understand their responsibilities, rights, opportunities and choices.
- Ensure children are able to understand the information that they acquire and provided them with contexts where they are able to consider and evaluate the information they receive.

## Roles and responsibilities

An effective programme of RSHE requires support from the whole school community and the following people have specific roles and responsibilities:

# Members of the Governing Body and the Headteacher are responsible for:

- Overseeing the development and delivery of RSHE.
- Providing staff with the opportunity to contribute to the development of RSHE.
- Providing information to the trustees/governors.
- Providing training for the subject leader and staff, as required.
- Supporting the subject leader to liaise with parents and carers.
- Dealing with parents and carers who wish to withdraw a child from sex education.

## Subject leader

- Leading the development and delivery of effective RSHE.
- Keeping up-to-date with the development of RSHE.
- Supporting colleagues as required.
- Monitoring and evaluating RSHE and providing necessary reports.
- Liaising with parents and carers.
- Keeping subject information up-to-date, including on the school website.
- Overseeing external visitors and resources used in RSHE.

## All staff

- To understand and implement the policy of RSHE.
- To teach RSHE in line with the agreed curriculum.
- To assess and monitor the progress of children.
- To respond to the needs of individual children.

## Curriculum organisation\*

To ensure high quality delivery of RSHE, the curriculum is organised as follows: RSHE is covered as part of a wider programme of PD education. RHSE is taught explicitly, and lessons are delivered weekly.

Focus days, visits and visitors do not replace a taught lessons but are utilised to enhance the school programme. Cross curricular learning contributes to pupil learning and links are outlined within the lesson plan. Lesson are taught by confident and skilled staff as they are most effective, particularly for sensitive and controversial topics. For some topics the school will make use of specialist teachers, for example Crucial Crew and The STAR Project, led by West Mercia Police.

## Teaching and learning

RSHE is delivered in line with the teaching and learning policy. However, as the subject deals with 'real-life experiences', it is important to establish a safe and positive learning environment using the following approaches:

- Establishing clear ground rules in consultation with children. Ground rules should include confidentiality, respect for others, privacy and boundaries.
- Using distancing techniques including de-personalised discussions and role play.
- Using clear language to avoid misunderstandings.
- Avoiding prejudice and assumptions about children's abilities, desires, background and experiences.
- Dealing sensitively with unexpected questions and comments.
- Assessing and building on existing knowledge and experiences.
- Ensuring that learning is engaging, using a range of activities, including structured discussion and problem-solving.
- Providing a range of opportunities to learn, practise and demonstrate knowledge, skills and attitudes.
- Allowing time for reflection.
- Providing differentiated learning.
- Using a variety of groupings to enhance learning.

#### Curriculum content

#### Long term planning

The school has chosen to use the <u>Kapow Primary RSE scheme of work</u>, which provides full curriculum coverage, including all the statutory content, for each year group.

Follow this link to view the <u>Kapow Primary RSE curriculum overview</u>.

#### Resources

Teachers will select any additional resources carefully, and the subject leader will oversee the selection.

Additional resources will be:

- Up-to-date.
- Relevant to children.
- Consistent with the aims and values of the school.

## Equality

Under the *Equality Act 2010*, the school is under a legal duty to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relationships between those with protected characteristics and those without. The protected characteristics are:

- Age.
- Marriage and Civil partnership.
- Disability.
- Race.
- Religion and belief.
- Sexual orientation.
- Sex.
- Pregnancy and maternity.
- Gender reassignment.

In addition, the school considers the needs of those with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND).

The RSHE programme will meet the needs of all children. Lessons will include content that will tackle discrimination and foster good relationships.

# Right to withdraw from sex education\*

A parent or carer cannot legally withdraw their child from any aspect of the statutory relationships education or health education.

A parent or carer does have the right to withdraw their child from sex education unless what is being taught is part of the science national curriculum.

Following a consultation with the whole school community, the following content is deemed to be sex education:

- Year 6: Safety and the changing body, Lesson 5: Conception
- Year 6: Safety and the changing body, Lesson 6: Pregnancy and birth

The following process must be followed if a parent or carer wishes to withdraw their child from sex education:

We provide parents with opportunities to discuss the school's policy, practice and to

understand the purpose and content of RSE. Parents will be informed about the timing of delivery and offered an opportunity to look at resources, discuss the policy and ask questions.

We will provide parents of pupils in all year groups with details of when health, sex and relationship will be taught in the Curriculum. They will have the opportunity to discuss what is being taught to enable them to support discussions with their children at home.

The Relationships Education, Relationships and Sex Education, and Health Education regulations 2019 (made under sections 34 and 35 of the Children and Social Work Act 2017) confirms the 1996 Education Act, that parents have the right to withdraw their child from part, or all of the sex education programme that does not form part of the national science or health education curriculum. There is no parental right of withdrawal from the science, relationship or health education curriculum, which includes understanding changing adolescent body.

If a parent wishes to do this, they should discuss this with the child's class teacher, who will inform the head teacher. We will encourage parents to discuss any concerns at the earliest opportunity with the class teacher teacher and head. The head will discuss the implications of withdrawal from the non-statutory part of the curriculum.

School staff will help parents identify and discuss the impact and implications of withdraw for their child, including the benefits of receiving this important education and any detrimental effects that withdrawal might have on the child. This could include any social and emotional effects of feeling excluded, as well as the like hood of the child hearing their peers' version of what was said in the classes, rather than what was said directly by the teacher.

Parents should make it clear which aspect of the programme they do not wish their child to participate in, this will be documented, and parents may be asked to put their request in writing. Resources and information regarding delivering sex education at home will be made available.

# Safeguarding

RSHE includes sensitive topics. It is, therefore, possible that discussions will prompt safeguarding disclosures/allegations. Reference should be made to safeguarding policies and procedures to deal with these appropriately.

The subject leader/teacher should discuss with the designated safeguarding lead any potentially sensitive topics. Appropriate steps must be taken to provide additional support for children if required.

Staff should consider the timing of lessons to ensure that children have the opportunity to report any concerns they may have either that day or the following day.

## Support

RSHE should not be a time for children to make disclosures. It is important, however, to inform children of the support that is available to them if they are worried about anything raised in a lesson. The following support will be highlighted to children as appropriate:

#### In school:

- Class teacher.
- Specific staff members, for example Inclusion Manager, DSLs, ELSAs and members of the SLT.

#### External:

- Local agencies.
- National agencies such as Childline

## Monitoring and evaluating\*

The headteacher and subject leader will be responsible for monitoring and evaluating RSHE in line with other subjects.

Monitoring and evaluating will include evidence from:

- Scrutiny of planning.
- Lesson observations.
- Learning walks.
- Learning Outcomes.
- Feedback from staff.
- Feedback from parents/carers.
- Feedback from children.

# Professional development

The headteacher and subject leader will assess the professional development needs of staff regularly. Appropriate development will be provided using internal or external expertise.

# Communication of policy

This RSHE policy will be available to read on and downloaded from the school website and copies can be requested free of charge from the school office.

## YEAR GROUP CONTENT FOR RSE:

## KAPOW- Relationship and Sex Education Lesson Overview:

Year 1 introduction to online safety; distinguishing secrets from surprises; and looking at the concept of privacy.	KS1 Year 1	Families and relationships	secrets from surprises; and looking at the
---	---------------	----------------------------	--

## Shropshire Syllabus Lesson Overview

Year 1	<b>Amazing me</b> -understand how we have changed from a baby	Recognise their skills and feel positive about themselves.
	<b>Same but Different</b> -recognise how we have changed from a baby	Understand the difference between boy's and girl bodies, naming external body parts.
	Animals and their babies-recognise and understand how we have changed from a baby	Recognise and respect differences. Compare and contrast themselves with others.

## KAPOW- Relationship and Sex Education Lesson Overview.

Year 2	Families and relationships	Lesson collection: Developing understanding of safety: roads, medicines, and an introduction to online safety; distinguishing secrets from surprises; naming body parts and looking at the concept of privacy.
		Key Vocabulary:
		Medicine, pedestrian, private, secret, surprise, penis
		testicles/testes, vulva, vagina

## Shropshire Syllabus Lesson Overview

Year	I can do-talk about feelings and	Recognise their skills and feel positive about
2	talents.	themselves.
-		Understand the difference between boy's and girl's
	Knowing our bodies-increase	bodies, naming external body parts.
	understanding of changes	Recognise and respect gender differences.
		Compare and contrast themselves with others.
		Key Vocabulary
		Knee, neck, feet, finger, ankle, hand, mouth,
		Shoulder, head arm, thumb, stomach, eyes, penis,
		vagina, testicles.

## KAPOW- Relationship and Sex Education Lesson Overview:

Year 3	Families and relationships  Health and wellbeing	Lesson collection: Learning about: cyberbullying and how to be good digital citizens; first aid, bites, and stings and how to be safe near roads. Pupils also think about choices and influence.
	Safety and the changing body (See key vocab table)	Key Vocabulary used: Allergic, anaphylaxis, bullying, casualty Choice, cyberbullying, decision, distraction
	Citizenship  Economic wellbeing	Fake, influence, injuries

## Shropshire Syllabus Lesson Overview

Year	Growing up-prepare for and understand	Identify physical and emotional changes that will
3	the physical and emotional changes that	happen to them in the next year.
, I	occur as part of puberty	Consider what things will change over time and
	Knowing our bodies- identifying levels of	what things will remain the same.
	knowledge and understanding about	Discuss different names that may be used for
	puberty, menstruation and conception.	different body parts.
	Facts and fiction- developing knowledge	Continue to explore growing up and understand
	and understanding about puberty,	more about how their bodies will change,
	menstruation and conception.	including the word puberty.
	'	Consider the life cycles of animals and humans

## KAPOW- Relationship and Sex Education Lesson Overview:

Year	Families and relationships	Lesson collection: Building awareness of online safety and the benefits
4	Health and wellbeing	and risks of sharing information online; identifying the difference between private and public; age restrictions; exploring the physical and emotional
	Safety and the changing body (See key vocab table)	changes in puberty; the risks associated with tobacco; knowing how to help someone with asthma. <b>Key Vocabulary used:</b>
	Citizenship	Age restriction, Asthma, Breasts, Genitals, Law, Penis, Private, Protect Puberty, Public, Testicles/Testes
	Economic wellbeing	Тоћассо.

## Shropshire Syllabus Lesson Overview

Year 4	<b>Life Cycles</b> - how bodies change <u>as a result of</u> puberty.	Know that during puberty a body changes from a child to an adult.
	Knowing our bodies- develop knowledge of menstruation and clarify misconceptions	Recognise emotional and physical changes. Become confident in awareness of life cycle changes-conception and birth are features. Know that each person experiences puberty differently. Understand why the body changes in puberty. Understand some basic facts about pregnancy. Key Vocabulary. Brain, heart, intestine, liver, kidneys, ovaries & fallopian tube, bladder, penis &testicles, skin.

## KAPOW- Relationship and Sex Education Lesson Overview:

Year	Families and relationships	Lesson collection:
5	Health and wellbeing	Exploring the emotional and physical changes of puberty, including menstruation; learning
	Safety and the changing body (See key vocab table) Lessom 1 -Online friendships Lessom 2-Staying safe online. Lessom 3- Puberty Lessom 4- Mentruation Lessom 5- Emotional changes in puberty Lessom 6- First Aid- Bleeding and head injuries. Lessom 7- Alcohol, drugs, and tobacco: Making decisions.	about online safety, influence, strategies to overcome potential dangers and how to administer first aid to someone who is bleeding.  Key Vocabulary used. Attraction, Bladder, Breasts, Cervix Clitoris, Decision, Egg. or ova Ejaculation, Erection, Fallopian tube Friend, Influence, Labia, Menstruation/period, Nipples. Ovary/ovaries, Private, Puberty
	Citizenship	Pubic hair, Scrotum, Testicles/testes
	Economic wellbeing	Vagina, Vulva

## Shropshire Syllabus Lesson Overview

Year 5/6	Puberty- know about physical and emotional changes	Understand the physical and emotional changes that take place during puberty and
	Menstruation-develop greater understanding of menstruation (in single sex groups where appropriate)  Reproduction—how a baby is made as part of a loving relationship.	how to manage them. Understand life processes common to humans, including reproduction. Know and understand about personal hygiene and how to keep safe. Know and understand the main stages of the
	Pregnancy-the process of pregnancy and how a baby is hom	human life cycle. Consider words used to describe sex and relationships.

## KAPOW- Relationship and Sex Education Lesson Overview:

6	Families and relationships  Health and wellbeing  Safety and the changing body: Lesson 1- Alcohol Lesson 2- Critical Digital consumers. Lesson 3 - Social media Lesson 4 - Physical & emotional changes of puberty. (Statutory- all pupils) Lesson 5- Conception (Non-statutory- Optional) Lesson 6 - Pregnancy and birth (Non-statutory- Optional) Lesson 7- First aid and choking Lesson 8 - First Aid: Basic life support Citizenship Economic wellbeing Identity Transition	Lesson collection: Learning about: the reliability of online information, the changes experienced during puberty, how a baby is conceived and develops, the risks associated with alcohol and how to administer first aid to someone who is choking or unresponsive.  Key Vocabulary used: Cyberbullying, Egg or ova, Ejaculation Erection, Fallopian tube, Fertilisation Genitals, Internet trolling, Labia Menstruation/period, Nipples Ovary/ovaries, Penis, Pregnant Puberty, Pubic hair, Scrotum Sexual intercourse, Sperm, Sperm duct Testicles/testes, Urethra
---	---	---

## Shropshire Syllabus Lesson Overview

Year 5/6	Puberty- know about physical and emotional changes	Understand the physical and emotional changes that take place during puberty and how to manage them.
	Menstruation-develop greater understanding of menstruation (in single sex groups where appropriate)	Understand life processes common to humans, including reproduction.  Know and understand about personal hygiene and how
	Reproduction—how a baby is made as part of a loving relationship.	to keep safe. Know and understand the main stages of the human life cycle.
	Pregnancy-the process of pregnancy and how a baby is born	Consider words used to describe sex and relationships.